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Rackground

This proceeding rvas commenced on Septemb er 28,2006 wirh the filing of an
Administrative Cornpiaint by the Complainant, the United States Environmental protection
Agency. Region 2 ("EPA"), against Respondent, Municipality of Catafro. The Complaint'
charges the Respondent in three counts w'ith violations of the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act,42 U.S.C' $ 6901 et seq. ("RCRA"), by failing ro respond to an EpA Infbrmation
Request Letter issued pursuant to Section 3007(a) of RCRA (42 u.s.c. 5 6g27)(count 1);
failing to label containers with the words "f)sed Oil," as required by RCRir implementing
reguiation 40 C'F.R. $ 279.22(c)(1) (Count2); and failing to stop, contain, ciean up and manage
properly used oil releases as required by RCRA implementing regulation 40 C.F'.R. S 279.22(i).
The Complaint proposes a total penalty of $39,462 and requests a Complialce Order. 

\-)

On or about October 30,2007. Respondent filed an Ansr.ver to the Complaint and a
separate Motion Requesting l{earing.r ln its Ansrver, Respondent admitted the truth of
essentially all of the factual allegations made in the Complaint, including that it was a.,person,,
as defincd by RCRA Section 1004(1 5) (42 U.s.c. $ 690 j(15) antl 40 c.F'.R. $ 260.10; thar i t  was
the "owner and/or operator" of a "I-acilitv," specifically its Municipality's Department of
Transportation and Pr,rbiic works ("Facilitv"), as rhose rerms are defined b1,40 c.F.R. $ 260.10;
tlrat it is a "used oil generator" as def-ined by 40 C.F.R. $ 279.20(a); that EpA conducted a RCRA
compliance inspection of the Facility on December 7,2005 and foun<i 25 improperl,v labeled
r-rsed oil containers and/or tanks; that on or about February 14,2006,purruunt to RCRA Sections
3007 and 3008 (12 U.S.C. $$ 6927 and 6828), EPA issued to i t  a Notice of Violation (,,NOV,,)

1 'fhe 
Answer to the Complaint and Motion Requesting Flearing filecl on Respondent,s behalf

\\€re prepared and signed by Ilernan G. Chico Fuertes, Office of Legal Service for the Munigipality
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and Jnformation Request I etter (''IRL"); and that it lailed to timely and fully respond to the
Nov/IRL'2 See, Ansu'er sI I - 19. Respondent further aclmitted in essence the iiolations alleged
in Counts I through 3. In response to Count I Respondent noled that it rvas in the process of
preparing its finai response to the IRL but due to "technicalities" it took more time to prepare,
and that it completed its Finai Report on October 11,2006. In response to Count 2 Respondent
asserted that it took "affirmative action" and properly corrected the violarions by February 2006.
In response to Count 3 Respondent asserted rl-rat it was in the process of taking sreps to correct
the Violatiotts, it-t tltat on December 2,2005,just days prior to the EpA inspeciion at issue in the
Cornplaint. it entered into a contract with a third party in that regard. Answer \li1i 20-33.
Respondent's Answer further alleged that "as of ioday the Municipality is in full compliance.,'
and that the proposed penalty "has not taken into consideration alf the steps ald correctirre
actions taken w'hereby by February 2006 all the alleged violation [sic] or most of them has [sic]been corrected." Ansu'er!133 and p. 3.

Respondent attached to its Ansra,'cr a number of documents, the majority of'rvhich areq'ritten in Spanish, including what appears to be correspondence from Responcient to EpA dated
Apr i i  1 i .2006,  Apr i l  24,2006,  and October  11,2006;  facs imi le  cover  sheets dated Apr i l  11.
2006- Aprl l27 .2006, and.N4ay 2.2006; a coutract bctr,vcen Responder-rt and a third parly for
dispcrsition of gasoline rvith sludge dated December 2, 2005,wiih proof of insurance and
corporate status attached; receipts for goods received by a recycling plant on December 13, 2005
and January 2006, transponation manifests, and iaboraiory chain of custocly records lbr used oil
and mineral oil dated December 21.2005 and January 12,2006;<lisposal restriction notification
lbrm for hazardous r.vaste dated December 13, 2005; uniform hazardous waste manifests for
gasoline and sludge dated December 13.2005; and a laborarory report on a usecl oii sample dated
January 12,20A6. S'ee, documents attached to Ansu,er.

Thereafter, the parties were offered, and accepted, an opportunity to participate in this
T'ribunal's Alternative DispLrte Resolution (ADR) process. The parties participated in ADR frorn
November 9 ' 2A06 until January 1 1, ?007 , when the Neutral judge Carl C. Charneski reporred
that "[t]here has not been enough progress made in this case toward settlement that fsiciwouldrvartant an extension of the ADR process." Thereafter, the undersigned lvas desisnated to
preside over this ntatter.

On January 16' 2007, a Prehearing Order was issued requiring the Complainant tq file its
Initial Prehearing Exchange in this matler on or before February 16, 2007; Responcient to file its
Initial Prehearing Exchange on or before N,larch 2, 2007; and permitting Compiainant to file a
rebuttal prehearing exchange on or before N,{arch 16,2A07. The Prehearing Order further stated:

': l'he only factual allegation Respondent did not admit in its Answer was that on ,,Aprll27 
,

2006" it submitted a parlial response to the NoV, alleging instead it subrnitted sr-rch response on
"Apr i l  I 1 ,2006 . "  Comp l . , l 1 l8 ;  Ans . l i  18 .
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Each party is herebv reminded that failure to comply w,ith the prehearing exchange
requiremetrts set for-th herein, including Respondent's statement of election only
to conduct croSS:eX?ITIination of Complainant's u.'itnesses, can result in the e1try
of a defauit judgment against the defaulting party. See Section 22.17 of the Rules
o f  P rac t i ce ,  40  C .F .R .  \  22 .17 .

In accordance rvith the Prehearing Order, on February,i3,2007.Complainanl f i led irs
Initial Prehearing Exchange (PIIE), identif,ing tl-rree witnesses and four exhitits as rvell as
providing other information responsive to the preirearing order.3

On March 15,2007,Complainant fllecl a Motion for llntry of Default, seeking imposition
of the fullproposed pcnaltir and compliance orcler, citing as a factual basis therefor tliat
Respondent had not responded in any way'to this Tribuial's prehearing Order.

To date- Itcspondcnt has noi f i lcd anv rcsponse 10 thc Prchearing order or lhe Vlorion for
Default.a

Discuss ion

As noted in Compiainant's lvlot ion, Section 22.17 of the Consolidared Itules of practice
("Rules") provides that:

(a) Deflauit. A party may be found to be in default:
rvith the information exchange rerluirements of'g 22

. . upon failure to comply
19(a) or an order ofthe

3 Complainant actually attached to its Prehearing Exchange the four exhibits listed therein
as those it intended to introduce into eviclence at hearing (nos. I through 4), but attached thereto
three additional exhjbits (nos. 5 through 7) in responr" to inquiries *ud. by this Tribunal in the
Prehearing order. Exhibit 5 appears to be a tacsimile cover sheet sent by Respopdent to EpA on
Aprll27.2006 with an accompanyrng letter dated April24,2006 and attachments thereto. 'fhis
exhibit is rvritten primarily in Spanish and is unaccompanied by an English translation.
Compiainantrs llxhibits 6 and 6(a) are copies ofthe Clivii Monetary penalty Inflatron Itule. published
respectively at 69 Fed. Reg. 7121 (Feb. 13,2004) ( l lx. 6) and 6l Fed. Reg 69361 (Dec. 31,1996)
(Ex. 6(a)), r.vhich are in linglish.

n Complainant alleges in its Default lr4otion that it contacted Respondent's counsel to inform
him of the filing of the Motion and that saicl counsel advised Complainant that he would be filing
Respondent's Prehearing Exchange "toclay," presumably meaning lv1arch l5, 2007, tire date the
lr4otion was filed. See, N4otion fbr Default. -ti3l. I{or.r,ever, the Regional Hearing Clerk advised this
Tribunal that as of April 16,2007, Responclent.had not filed a f,rehearing Exchange nor a response
to tl.re lv{otion for I)efar-rlt.
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Presidi'g olficdr . . . . Default by responcient constitutes, for purposes of the
pending proceeding only, an aclmission of all facts alleged in the Complaint and a
r i ' . i ' c r  o f  rcsponde' t 's  r ic .h t  ro  conlest  such tactual  a l legar ions.  .  .  .

(b) Motion for ciefault. A motion for default may seek resolution of all or part of
the proceeding. \vhere the motion recluests the assessment of a penalty oi th"
imposition ol other relief against a delaulting party, the mo'u,ant prust specr.l], the
penalty or other relief sought and state the legil and factual grouncls for the relief
rcqucsted.

(c) Default orcler. When tirc Presiding Officer finds that default has occurrecl. he
shall issue a default order against the defaulring party as to an1,or all parts of the
proceeding uniess the record shows good cause u,hy a default order should not be
issued' I f  the order resolves al l  outstanding issues and claims in the proceeding, i1
shall  constitute the init ial decision under these Consolidated Rules of practice.'l'he 

reiief proposed in the complaint or the motion for default shali be ordered
unless the requested relief is clearif inconsistent rvith the record of the prroceedrng-
or tire z\ct. . . .

(d) Payment of penaltv; effective datc of compiiance or correctlve action orders
' ' Any" penalty assessed in the default order shall become due and pa-vable by
respondent rvithout further proceedings 30 days after the default order becomes
f-rnai under $ 22.27(c). Any default orcler recluiring compliance or corrective
action shall be effecti'u'e and enforceable rvithout further proceedings on the date
rhe dcfaul t  order  becomes f ina l  undcr  $ 32.27(c,1.  .  .  .

40  c .F .R  g  2? .17  .

Furlher, Section 22.16(b) of the Rules provides in pertinent part thar:

A party's response to any written motion must be filed w.ithin
of such motion. . . . Any party rvho faiis to respond u,ithin the
wail,es any objection to the granting of the motion.

1 5 days after service
designated period

40 C.F.R.  S 22.16(b) .  Secr ion22,7(c)  o f  the Rutes
Rulcs tbr  l i l ing of  a  response lo  a document  sen,cd
serv ice.  40 C.F.R.  g 22.7(c)  5

extends bv five days
bv f i rs t  c lass nra i l  or

the tirne aliowed by the
comrnercial deliverv

s fhe addirional five days
in the Rules ("the time allor.ved by
Presiding Olf icer.

provided by 40 C.F.R. g 22.7(c) applies
these Consolidated Ruies of practice',),

to response times set forth
not to due dates sct b\ thc
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'fhis 
Tribunal 's Prehearing Order issued on January 16, 2007 required Respondent to

respond to it on or befbre lv{arch 2,2007 or suffer clefault. Rules 22.rc(b) and.22.7(cy required
Respondent to respond to the N{otion for Default fiied on March 15.2001, on or before Aprii a.
2007 or be considered to have waived any objection to the granting of the Motion. 'fo 

date,
Respondent has not responded to either the Prehearing Order or the Motion fbr Defauit. Thus,
the Respondent is hereby found to have ra'aivecl any oLjection to the granting of the Motion apd
tobe inde fau l t f o r l a i l i ng to respond to th i sT r ibuna l ' sP rehear ingOrde ' ro f l anua ry  16 ,20 ( )7 . In
accordance with Rule 22-17(a), such default constitutes grounds for assessment of ihe monetary
penalty and compliance order proposed in the Complaint unless the requested relief is clearly
inconsisrcnt  u i th  the rccord of  the proceeding or  the Act .

T'he foilow'ing Findings of Iract and Conclusions of Law are based upon the Complaint,
Respondenl's Ansrver thereto, Complainant's Prehearing Exchange, and other documents of
rccord in the casc.o

FINDINGS OF FACT AN

The Complainant is the United States Ilnvironmental Protection Agency (EpA), Region
2, specificaill'the Director of the Carribean Environmental Protection Division, who has
been duly delegated the authoritv to institute rhe action. co{np, p. 2; Ans. $ i.

T'he Respondent is the Nlunicipality of Cataiio, a municipal governmentai authority
fbunded in 1927 and located in Puerro Rico, governed uncleithe "Ley de X4unicipios
Aut6nomos,"  Publ ic  LawNo.  81,  August  -70,  1991,  as amended.  comp. , t1  l ;Ans. . f i  l .

6 In light of the fact that Respondent submitted various documents u,ritten in Spanish in
connection with its Ansr'ver, the Prehearing Order stated that "the parties are hereby advised that in
order for this Tribunalto assure that a complete and proper evideniiary record is created in this case
for the ptlrposes of decision and appeal, it ii necessary that, to the fullest extent possible, all Spanish
language material accepted into evidence be accompanied by' a written Engiirh translation by a
government certified Spanisli-Engiish language translator." .See, Prehearing Ordcr, $l(a)Complainant subrnitted n'ith its Prehearing Exchange (PHE) a complete copy of the Responient;s
Answer to the Compiaint with exhibits in Spanish attached (C's pffE trx. 2) for rhe sake of
cornpletion, noting it intended to onlv rely upon the Answer itseif rvhich rvas r.vritten in English.
Complainant also attached to its Prehearing Exchange another docum'ent written primarill,in Spanish
identified as Ex. 5, but not listed as a document it intended to introduce at hearing, iompiainant
suggested in its Prehearing Exchange that the party which generared rhe document be responsible
for translaling it. In reaching the decision herr-in, only documents rvritten in English were considered
and  rc l i cd  upon .

2.
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At ail times relevant hereto. Respondent was a "person" as ciefinecl by RCRA Section
1004(15 )  (42  u .s . c .  $  6903(15 ) )  and  40  c  F .R ,  S  260 .10 .  comp.  I , i 2 ;  Ans .11z .

At ail times relevant hqreto, Respondent was the "owner and/or operator" of a ,,facility,"
specifically its Departrnent of Transpoflation and Public Works located at Road #g69,
Industrial Park at Las Palmas Ward in Cataiio, Puerro Rico ("the Facilitl,"), as those terms
are def ined by,10 C.F.R.  $ 260 10.  Comp. ! f  3 ;  Ans.  J i3 .

At all times relevant hereto, by reasons of its activities at the Faciiity, Respondent was a
"used oi l  generator," as defined under 40 c,F,R. $ 279.20(i l ,  and such,,used oi l"
generated and stored at the Faciiity was subject to the requirements of RCRA and 40
C.F.R. Part279, Subpart C. Comp. ,11,1i8, 9; Ans, Ji{ g, 9.

On or about December 7 ,2005. EPA conducted a RCILA C-'ompliance Evaluation
Inspection of the Facility and advised Respondent that it fbund 25 containers and/or tanks
holding used oi l  which were not iabeied u' i th the words "used oi i ," including a 1,000-
gaiion above-ground used oil storage tank located next to the Mechanic shof,, a halj-fl.rli,
55-galion steel container of used oill'uvater p.laced on the concrete floor next to the
Carpentry Warehouse, thirteen (13) 55-gallon steel conlainers filled rvith transformer oil
situated at the Former Used Oil/Filler Change Area, an open 5-gallon plastic container
filled rvith used oil and water located at the Employee's Farking Lot, ancl nine (9) 55-
gallon steel containers filled rvith used oil placed in a secondary containment-like
structure at the Employee's Parking Lot. Comp T,lJ l0-12; Ans. , ' [1i 10_12; C,s FHE Ex. 3,
p .7

During the inspection, stains were observed both on the concrete floor next to the open 5-
gallon plastic container iilled with a mixture of used oil and warer located in the
Employee's Parking Lot, and the nine (9) 55-gailon steei containers fiiied with used oil in
the Emplol''ee's Parking Lot rvhich the inspector concluded rvere "probably from
releases" frorn the containers. Comp. ,TJ29; Ans. l l  29; C,s pHE E;. 3,pp. 5,7.

On or about February 14,2006, pursuant to RCRA Sections 3007 and 300g (42 U.S.C. $$
6927 and 6828), EPA issued to Respondent a Notice of Violation Qrrov) and Information
Request Letter (IRI) identifl,'ing the violations found dr:ring the inspection and reclucstrng
that Respondent provide certain inforrnation in regard to its hazardous u,aste generatron
activit ies "no later than thirty (30) calendar days from receipr." Cornp.,, l l  l3: Ans. Jl l3;
C ' s  P I  IE  Ex .  4 .

Respondent received by certified mail the NOV/IRL on
making tl-ie deadline for responding thereto on or about
Ans. ! l  14.

or about February 21.2006,
N fa rc l r  23 ,2006 .  Comp.  (  l 4 :

7 .

q

10. Respondent did not submit to Complainant a response to the NOV/IRL by March 23,
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2006. Comp fl  14; Ans. ! l  14.

On or about April 6' 2006. EPA unsuccessfully atternpteci to contact Respondent,s
Facility Director by telephone regarding its lack of rerponse to rhe NOViIRC, and left a
message in regard thereto. Comp. T 15; Ans. , l j  15.

on 
"\pril 

I 0 and I 1 , 2006, Responclent contacted Complainant by' tciephone. advised it
that the Nov/IRL had been misplaced and that an infoimal response would fe subrnitted
on April 10, and requested an additional i 0 days to formally respond to the NOV/IRL.
EPA granted Respondenr the requested extension. comp. ,f,l] 16, I 7; A's. ,.llti 16, 17.

Respondent thereafter subn-ritted a partial response to the Nov/lRL including therervith a
copy of a contract it had entered into to correct. clean and dispose of the unlafielled used
oil  co'tainers identif ied by EpA during its inspection. comp. .1j 1g; Ans. 1l l  g.

As of the filing of the Cornplaint on Sqptember 29,2006, Respondent still had not fullv
responded to the NOV/IRL. Comp. l f  19; Ans. g 19.

1 a
I  J ,

COTJNT ]

17

16

Section 3007(a) of RCRA (42 u.s.c. $ 6927) provides in pert inenr parr that:

For purposes of . . . enforcing the provisions of this.titie, any person who
generates, stores.. treats, transports, disposes of, or otherwise handies or has
handied hazardous wastes shall, upon request . . . of the Environmental protection
Agency . . . furnish information relating to such wastes . . ..

On or about Februarv 2l . 2006,Respondent received from EpA an Notice of Violatio'
arrd Information Request Letter (NOV/IRL) issued pursuant to RCRA Section 3007 (42
U S C 5 6927) requesting Respontlent furnish to EPn information explicitly relating ro
the "hazardous n'astes" (as defined in 40 C.F.R. Part 261) generated and stored at the
Iraci l i ty. ,9ee, C's PIIE Ex. 4.

I'he IRL required Respondent to furnish the
30 days of receipt unless otherwise extended
allorving Respondent unti l  Apri l  21. 2006 to

intormation requested therern to EpA rvithin
by the Agency (as occurred in this case)
respond. See, C's PHFj Ex. 4.

18 . Respondent failed to full-v respond to the IRL within
t i  i 4

the t irne al iotted. Comp. { 14: Ans

l9' Responderrt's failure to fully and timely respond to EpA's IRI. issuecl on lrebruary 14,
.2006 

qonstirutes a violation of RCILA. Section 3007(a) (42 u.s.c. S 6927). see e.g.,
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22.
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'United State.g v Charle.s George T'rucking Co.,642 F. Supp. 32g.333 (D. )\4ass.
1986)(defendants' lailure to respond to infbrmation request under RCRA Section 3007(a)
rvithin 30 days sub.iects them to summarv finding of tiaUltity and impositiol of a ciyil
penalty): Unired states t,  Lit , iola,605 F. Supp. 96,gg 1o. ohio lgg5xEpA rvas enlir lecl
to request information from the defendants under RCRA S 3007(a) and its reasonable
request was llaunted, subjecting Respondcnt to injunctir,.e relief and penalties under
RCRA 6928 even if violation u,as not willful and no compliance ordlr issuecl).

COUN T 2

Section 279.22(c)(1), 40 cl.F.R., provides in pert inent part that: . .containers and
aboveground tanks used to slore used oii at generator l-acilities must be labeled or rnarkeci
clearly with the words "Used Oil. t '

At the time llPA inspected Responclent's facilit.v on Decemb er 7 , 20A5, Respondent had
25 containers and/or aboveground tanks which r.r,ere used to store used oil at the pacility
rvhich r'vere not clearly labeled or marked .,vith the u,ords "Used Oil." Cornp. fJ l0-i2;
Ans.  ! i ' l i  10-12:  C 's  PFIE Ex.  3 ,  p .7.

Itespondent's failure to have such containers and/or above ground tanks labeled or
marked clearly with the words "used oil"constitutes a violation of 40 c.F R. $
279-22(c)(1) &e e.g., Dearborn Refining co., EpA Docket No. RCM-05-2001-00i9,
2003 EPA ALJ I-EXIS 64 (ALJ, Aug. 15, 2003) a{f 'ct FICF.A (3008) Appeal No. 03-04.
2004 EPA App. LIJXIS 33 (IlAIl. Sept. 10, 200-1)(respondent liable foi p"nulty for failure
to label aboveground tanks and containers used to stoie or process used oil rvith the
rvords "used oil."); James llond, EpA Docket Nos. cwA-0g-2 004-0017 & RCI{A-O8-
2004-00 19, 2005 EPA ALJ LEXIS 1 (AL.I, .tan. 1 I , 2005)(enrry, 6; default order and
imposition of penaity for. inrer alia, failure to properly label used oil tanks).

COLINT 3

L - ) . Section ?79.22(d),40 C.F.R. provides in perrinent part that:

Upon detection of a release of used oil to the envirorunent. . . a
generator must perform the fbllolving cleanup steps;
(  l )  S top  the  re lease;
(2 )  Conta in  t l rc  re lcased used o i l ;
(3) Clean up and manage properly the released used oii and otirer materials; and
(4) If necessary, repair or replace an.v leaking used oil storage containers or tanks
prior to returning them to service.
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Prior to EPA's inspection on Decemb er 7,2005, Respondent had detecteci releases of
used oil to the environment, specifically to the concrete floor next to the plastic and steel
containers of hazardous waste located in its Emplo),ee's Parking Lot, buf had failed to
stop. contain. clean up and rnanage the release. See, Ans. ti29 (representing Respondent
had entered into a col l tract - ' to correct the situation" of the releases on Decernber2.

.200-s ) .

Respondent's failure to stop, contain, clean up and rnanage said reieases constitures a
violation of 40 C-F.R. 5 279.22(d). See e.g.,.Iames Boncl, supra (entry of defauit order
and imposition ol penaitv for, inrer alia, failure to properly perform requisite clean up of
uscd o i l  re leascs) .

Section 22.17(c') of the Consoliclated Rules of Practice provides in pertinent part that
upon issuing a default "f t ] l te rel ief proposed in the compiaint .  .  .  shall  be ordered unless
the requested relief is clearly inconsrstent w,ith the record of the proceecling or the Act,,,
40 C'F'R.Q 22.17(c)- Section 22.25(b) of the Rules furt i ier provides that in deterni ining
the penalty the "Presiding Officer shall consider any civil penalty guidelines issued under
the Acl  ' '  40 C.F.R.S 22.28(b\ .

Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA (42 t,r.s.c. 6928(a)(3)) provides in perrinenr parr thar:

Any penalty assessed fby the Adminisrrator] . . . shali not exceed
S25,000 per day of noncompliance for each violation of a
requirement of this subtitle.i In assessing such a penalty, the
Administrator shall take into account the seriousness ot'tlie
violation and ariy good faith efforts to comply with applicable
requirements.

In June 2003, EPA issued a civi l  penaity policy for RCRA violations. see,
http://wwlr'.epa.gov/compliance/resources/policies/civil/ rcra/rcpp11O3-fhl.pdf.

I have determined that $39.462, the aggregate penalty,proposed in the Complaint for the
three counts of violation, is not the appropriate civil penalty to be assessecl against
Respondent fbr these violations. fhe documents submitted into the record show that

28

L ' / .

? f'his maximum penalty amount has
Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule
occurring on or after N{arch 15,2004. See,69

been twice adjusted upr.vard pursuant to the Civil
and is now set at $32.500 per day for violations
Fed ,  Reg .712 l  (Fcb .  13 ,200 -+ ) .

N OF CIVIL PENALT
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Respondent made good laith efforts to comply rvith applicabie requirements. The
proposed penalty provides absolutely no downwarcl adjustment for goocl faith, one of the
tu'o statutory f-actors for penalty assessment. Therefore the proposecl penalty is clearly
inconsistent rvith the record of the proceeding and ciearly inconsistent rvith the Act. I
believe a maximum five percent (5%) do*'nward adjustment for good faith is warranted
on the basis of Respondent's attempt to come into timely compliance with the violations
prior to the EPA inspection and its purporled full cornpliance within two months after tire
EPA inspection. In addition, it is noted that Respondent honestly acknowledged in its
Ansrver the factual allegations underlying the violations and liabilitv fur the violations
themsclvcs.

Consiclering Respondent's good faith efforts to cornply ri,ith applicable requirements, the
penalty assessecl is $37,488. In reaching this conclusion^ I have taken into account the
penalty criteria under the Act. the record. and the above refbrenced Penalty Policy.s

In assessing this penaltv, rvith the exception of the lack of anv downrvard adjustment for
good faith, i llnd persuasive the rationale for the calculation of the proposed penalty set
forth in the Complaint, referenced in Complainant's Initial Prehearing Exchange filed in
this proceeding. and incorporate such rationale by reference into this Order.

In reaching the appropriate penaity amount I have also taken into'account the follolvine
facts of record among many others:

Respondent is a Municipality rvhich iras been in operation over 30 years and has
175 employees. C's PI-IE Ex. 3.

At the Facility, Respondent generates solid and hazardous .ul,aste as lvell as used
oil. The used oil generated is stored primarily in 55-gailon containers rvhich are
eventually sent for recycl ing. C's Pl{E Ex. 3.

in 1980, Congress found and deciared that "used oil constitutes a threat to public
health and the enl, irorunenr *hen reuscd or disposed of improperl l ." 42 u.s.c. g
6901a.

Photographs taken during the EPA inspec,tion appear to show unmarked used oil
containers and tanks in poorly maintained condition and the inspector found the

BThe Prehearing Order issued in this case gave Respondent the opporlunity ro subrnit a
detailed statement explaining why the proposecl penalty should Ue ,eaucea or eliminated, and
particuiarly to submit an1, documentation r.r,hich would evidence inabilitv to pay the proposed
penalty. See, Prehearing Order dated January 16, 2007 . As indicated above. to date Respondent has
chosen not to respond to that Ordcr.

b .

o .
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Facility "under poor houselieeping conditions" "rvhich may result in a porential
threat to the enl'ironment." C.'s PI-IE ijx. 3. p. 6 and attachments thereto.

h

J'he General Supervisor of the Facility advised the inspector that the nine (9) 55-
gallon containers rvith used oil "appeared like a miracle at the employee's parking
lot" "approximateiy three (3) months ago," and he clid not "know.the origin of
such used oi l  containers." C's PI-IE Ex. 3, p. 5.

Respondent offers no explanation or excuse for its failure to properll, label and/or
mark its containers and tanks with used oil or clean up used oil releases on i1s
concrete floor in the Employee Parking area, an area likely accessible to many.

The Inspcct ion Rcpor l  ind icates that  on Novcnrbcr  8.  2005,  a lmost  cxact l r  a
monlh before the FPA inspcction at issue in the case, Rcsponclcnr had a
"Compliance Assistance Visit" frorn the Pueno Rico Environmental Quality
Board. Land Pollulion Control Program during whicir it rvas atlvised of the need
to comply with the Federal ljazardous \\'aste requirements applicable 1o
generators of used oil.

Respondent rcspondc'd to the issues raised by such visir rvith the apparent
intention of remedying them by entering into a contract lvith Corredores y
Contractistas Corp., an "environmental firm." specializing in "such matters," orl
December 2,2005, within a month after the Compliance Assistance Visit. Ans. ,li
29 and p.  3 ;  C 's  PFIE p.  6 ;  C 's  PI ' IE Ex.  3 ,  p .  i .

At the t ime of EPA's inspection, on December 7.2005, a rnonth after the'
Compliance Assistance Visrt. but.just two dar-s after the contract rvas concluded,
the Facility still had 25 improperly labeled or marked used oil containers/above
ground tanks and had yet to clean up the releases of the used oii which the EPA
inspeclor suggested came from leaking used oi l  conlainers. c's Ex. 3,p. 7.

Flor.vever, by February 2006,lr.vo rnonths after EpA's inspection. Respondent had
aliegedil' arranged for the remot'al of the used oil containers, leaving on site only
the 1000 gallon tank, and represented that it rvould properly label and mark this
tank r.'u'ith the',lords "used oii."e C's pl{E o. 6.

) .

n C'omplainant asserts in its Prehearing Exchange that there has been no follow-up inspection
so it cannot confirm rvith certainty the accuracy of Respondent's allegations in this regar4, but
acknowledges receiving, albeit poor quality. copies ofmanifests indicative of Respondent's disposal
of the 24 cohtainers of used oil and photographs purportedly showing the properl,v labeled 1,000-
gallon storage tank, iil Spanish. r.vhich by itsell'probably would not meet the regulator! requirenrept.
C ' s  P I . IE  pp .  5 -6 .

IJ
D '
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Respondent claims it came into full compliance and oonected ali of the noted
' iolat ions or "most of thcm" by Februar,v 2006 and ,,as of today foctober 24,
20061is in ful l  compiiance. Ans. j i26 ,33 and p. 3.

Respondent fails to provide a detailed and persuasive excuse for its failure to fully
and timell' respond to EPA's iRl, which it received on February 21,2006, other
than to say that because of some unspecified "technicaiities'' it took -'more time,,
than it presumabl-v anticipated to prepare 1he response and that on "October I 1,
2006 the final report was completed." Ans. S{ 22. Further, the Complaint alle ges
and Respondent admits that it ivas EpA who initiated first contact u,ith
Respondent regarding its overdue response to the IRL and it was oply after EpA
initiated such contact lhat Respondent requested an extension of time until April
21,2006. Comp. , l i , | IJ l5-17; Ans. ,1i i i  lS-17. ln addit ion, rhe record indicates rhat
Respondent did not even repll'to EpA's NoviIRL within the extended rime
courteously given it, but responded sometime shortl.v'- thereafter in part and
al lcgcdly  s ix  rnont l rs  la tcr  in  fu l l .

Respondent u'as fofihright in adrnitting the accuracy of the factual allegations and
violations set forlh in the Complaint.

Respondent did not file any response to the prehearing order issued by this
Tribunal.

COMPT,IANCE ORDER

fhe EAB has obsern'ed that "IRCRA] confers hroad cliscretionon the Administrator (and
derivatively to his delegatees) to fashion appropriate compliance orders fbr RCRA rrioiations.,,
Pyramid Chemical C'ompany,l 1 E.A.D. 657.686, n.40 (EAB 2004) (emphasis in original),
quoting A.Y. McDonald Indus.. 2 E.A.D. 402, 428 (CJO 1987) (emphasis added) , and cit ing
Arrcom, Inc.,2 E.A.D. 203,210-14 (CJO 1986). This aurhority l ' lor,vs from RCRA g 300gia), a2
U.S C. g 6928(a), and 40 C F R S 22.37(b).

fhe Complaint seeks a "Compliance Order" ancl in regard thereto proposes the foilor.ving
language:

l . Respondent shall. rvithin thirty (30) calendar days of the effective dare of
this compliance order, comply rvith a fu[ and accurate response to the
Information Request.

within ten (10) calendar days of the effective date of this compliance
Order. ResDondent shall:

1
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store used oil only in tanks and/or
labeled or marked rvitir the r.vorcls
rv i th  40 C.F.R.  g 219.22(c)( t ) .

All responses, documentation, and evidence submitted
Compliance Order should be sent to:

containers that are clearly
"LJsed Oil," in compiiance

b . Clean up and manage properly ali used oil releases at the
Facil i t f  in compliance with 40 C.F.R. Q 279.22; and,

compl.v'u'ith the applicable regulations and standarcls
governing the handling and nlanagement of used oil as set
forth in 40 C.F'.R. 5 279.

a
J . rn response to this

iUiguel A. Batista
Response & Remedration Branch

Carribean Environmental protection Dirrision
U.S. Environmental protection Agencv, Region 2

Clentro Europa Building. Suite 417
1492Ponce de Leon r\venue
San Juan. puerto Rico 00907

Compliance with the provisions of this Compliance Order does not waive.
€xtinguish or otherwise affect Respondent's obligation to comply with all other
applicable RCRA statutory' or rcgulatory (federal and/or Commonweatitr;
provisions, nor does such compliance release Respondent f iom l iabi l i ty for any
Vioiations at the Facility. In addilion, nothing herein waives, prejudices or
otheru'ise affects EPA's right to enforoe any applicable proviiion of larv, and to
seek and obtain any appropriate penalty or remedy under any such law, regarding
Respondent's generation, handling and/or management of hazardous waste at the
Faci l i r l ' .

Pursuant 1o the terms of Section 3008(c) of RCILA and the Debt Collection
Improvement ,'\ct of 1996, a violator failing to take corrective action ',r,ithin the
time specif ied in a compliance order is l iable for a civi l  penaltv of up to $32,500
for each day of continued noncompliance. Such continuecl non"onlpiiance may
also result in suspension or revocation of any permits issued to the rrioruto, rvhether
issued by EPA fsicl.

.9ee, Complaint, pp. 8-9.

In its Motion for Default, Complainant implies that there is some uncertaintv as to r.vhether
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injunctive relief in the forrn of a compliance order may be issued upon default and cites Central'  Bus Co., Inc., et al. I : 'PA Docket No. RCRA -02-2003-7501, 2004 EpA ALJ LL,XIS I 10, 3-4
(ALJ, Mav 24,2004) for the proposition that such relief may be granted. That oprpron, in turn,
cited in supporl of its holding in favor of granting such relief the decision of the Environmental
Appeals Board in Rybond, Inc.,6 E.A.D. 614.642 n. 38 (EAB 1996). upholding the compliance
order portion of a dei-ault order under Section 3 00s(a) of RCRA. 42 u.s. c. g 6g2g(a), as rveil as
several other decisions including Gertrge Atkinson, EPA Docket No. RCRA-900 6-VIII-97-02.
1 998 EPA ALJ LtlXlS 122 (AI'J, Oct. 26, 1998); Joe Mortiboy, EPA Docker No. RCITA USi
1092-12-01-9006, 1995 EpA ALJ LEXIS I (At.J, Apri l27 , J 995); G.s. service Cot p., EpA,
Docket No. v-w-90-R-07, 1993 EpA ALJ LEXIS 297 (ALJ, Dec 30, 1993); and. Cirrek
lvlaryland, Inc.,EP A Docket No. RCRA -III-177 , i gg2 EpA ALJ LEXIS 30g (ALJ, l\4arch 30,
1e92).

It is noted that Rule 22.17(c) and (d) specificaily provicle in pertinent part:

The relief proposed in tlre compluint or the motionlfttr default shall be ordered
unless tlte requested relief is cieariy inconsistent rvith the record of tire proceeding
o r  the  Ac t .  .  .  .

PaYnlent of penalty; effective date of compliance or corrective action orclers . . . .
Any penalty assessed in the default order shall become due and payable bi,
respondent without further proceedings 30 days after the defaultoider becomes
linal under $ 22.27(c). Any rtefault order requiring compliance or corrective
action sltnll be effective and enforceable witltoutfurther proceedings on the dote
tlre defoult order becontesfinal uilder $ 22.27(c). . .

40 C.F-.R. $ 22.17 (emphasis adcieci).

Based upon these authorities, I find that injunctive relief in tl-re fbrm of a complialce order
ma1'be gruntcd upon delaul t  uhcre appropr ia tc

In th is  case.  thc Respondent  rcprcsents in  i ts  unsu 'orn Ansu,er  that  "as o l ' today the
Municipality is in full compliance." Ans. 'li 33. For its paft, Complainant's prehearing Exchange
suggests that Respondent has proffered to it docun.rentation suggesting that it remedied the
violations, bul notes that the photographs Responclent subrnitted inthis regarcl were of ,,poor
quality," that it has not performed an additional foliow-up inspection lvhich r.voulcl inclependently
confirm the accuracy of Respondent's claims, and that it anticipated that it w,ould be in a.,better
position" to assess such claims once it received Responclent's Prehearing Exchange. Flovu.eyer, as
noted above, Respondent did not subrnit a Prehearing Exchange providing clear and certain
evidence in support of its representations as to compiiancc nor has it responded to the request for
injunctive relief in the default order. T'he supporting documents Respondent did subrnit with its
Answer are primarily in Spanish r.'r'ithout an English translation and as a result cannot confirm to
this'I'ribunai's satisfaction Respondent's current state of compliance. Therefcrre; I find it
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appropriate on the reoord Llpon def"ult to issue the injunctive relief inthe form of a Cornpliance
Order as proposed in the Cornplaint as such relief is not inconsistent r.vith the record in this
proceeding and RCRA. 40 C.F.I{.g 22.f i(c).

l .

OITDER

For failing to comply"rvith the Prehealing Order of the Presiding Officer as enumerared
above, Respondent lr,{unicipality o{ catafro is hereby fbuncl in DEFAUL r.

Respondent is hereby found liable on the three counts of violation alleged in the
Complaint and is assessed an aggregate civiJ administrative penalty in the amount of
s3 7."+88

Payment of the full amount of this civil penalty shail be made within thirty (30.1 days aiter
this Init iai I)ecision becomes a f inal order uncler 40 C.F.R. $ 22.27(c), as provided belorv.
Payment shall be made by sribmitting a certified or cashier's check i1the amount o1'
$37,488. pavable to "J'reasurer, united States of America." and mailecl to:

a
J .

Regional l-learing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 2
Nfellon Bank
P.O.  Rox  360188  IU
pittsburgh. pA 15251

A transrnittal letter identif,ving the subject case and EPA docket number as u,ell as
Respondent's name and address, rnust accompanv the check.

If Respondent fails to pay'the penaltir within the prescribed statutory period after entry of
th is  Order .  in terest  on t l re  penal ty  rna l 'be assesscd.  Sce,  3 l  L I .S.C.  $ 3717:40 C.F.R. 'g
1 a  l 1
l J .  r  l .

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. S 22.17(c),ILcspondent may f i le a Motion to set aside the
default order for good cause. ' fhis 

Order on Default constitutes an init ial decision,
and an init ial decision becomes a f inal order forty-f ive (45) davs al ler i ts service upon
thc part ies unless i t  is appealed to or revierved sua sponte by the EAI], or a parfy
moves to set aside the Dcfault order. 40 c.F.R. g$ 22.17(c) and 22.27(c). An appeal
of an init ial decision must be f i led rvithin thirty (30 ) days of service of the init ial
decision, as provided in 40 C.F.R. $ 22.30.

Respondent Municipality of cataiio is hereby furrher ORDERED to
fbl lou' ing compliance order pursuant to Seclion i00g(a) of I{cRA,

comply nith the
42  U .S  C .  $  6e28(a ; :
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COI,IPLIANCE OIIDER

Respondent shall, rvithin thirty (30) calenciar day's of the cff'eclive date of this Compliance
Order, comply r.'n'ith a full and accurate response to the Information Request to the extent it
has not previously done so.

Within ten (10) calendar days of the effective ciate of this Cornpliance Order, Respondent
shal l :

store used oil only in tanks and/or
marked rvith the rvords "ljsed Oil.
27e .22 (c ) (1 ) .

containers that are clearll' labeled or
" in compliance with 40 C.ir.R. $

clean up and manage properly all used oil releases at the Facilitv in
compiiance w,ith 40 C.F.R. $ 279.22; and

comply rvith the applicable reguiations and standards governing the
handling and management of used oil as set fbrrh in 10 c.F.R. €
279 .

All responses, documentation, and evidence submitted in response to this Compliance
Order should be senr to:

IV{iguelA. Batista
Response & Remediation Branch

Carribean Environmental Protection Division
lJ.S. Environmental protection Agencv, Itegion 2

Centro Europa lluilding, Suite 417
1492 Ponce de Leon Avenue
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907

Compliance with the provisions of this Compliance Order does not rvaive, exringuish or
otherrvise aifect Respondent's obligation to comply with all otirer applicable RCRA
statutory or regulatory (federai and/or Common'ul,eaith) provisions, nor does such
compliance release Respondent from l iabit i ty for any'violarions at the Iraci l i ty. In
addition, nothing herein waives. prejudices or otheru.ise affects EPA's right io enforce an1,
applicable provision of la*', and to seek and obtain any appropriate penaliy or remedy
under any such larv. regarding Respondent's generation, handling undio, managemenl of
hazardous u,aste at the Iiacility.

Pursuant to the terms o{'section 3008(c) of RCRA and the Debt Collection Improvement
Act of 1996. a violator failing to take corrective actior-r r','ithin the time specifieci in a
compl iance ordcr  is  l iab lc  for  a  c iv i l  pcnal tv  of  up ro 532,500 for  each day of 'conr inued

b.

l 0

I l .
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noncompliance. Such continued
revocation of any perrnits issued

L' l

noncompiiance ma-\, also result in suspension
to the violator issued bv EPA.

t r l

Dated:  Apr i l  17,2007
Washington, D.C.

Chief Administrative Law Judge
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